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MISSION STATEMENT

To provide quality products to customers and explore
new markets to promote / expand sale of the company
through good governance and foster a sound and
dynamic team, so as to achieve optimum price of
products of the Company for sustainable and equitable
growth and prosperity of the company.

VISION STATEMENT

To transform the Company into a modern and dynamic
yvarn & cloth manufacturing Company with highly
professional and fully equipped to play meaningful role
on sustainable basis in the economy of Pakistan.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the “CCG™) contained in
Regulation No. 35 of listing regulations of both Karachi Stock Exchange and Lahore Stock Exchange for the
purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with
the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner;

1. The Company encourages the representation of independent non-executive directors and directors
representing minority interests on its board of directors. At present the board includes four (4) non-
execufive and (3) executive directors including CEO.

However, since the manufacturing operations of the mills are closed due to some irrepressible factors, so the
appointment of independent director is postponed. However, the management intends to appoint an
independent director during next year and is looking for a suitable person as per the requirement of PSX
Regulations relating to the CCG.

2. Thedirectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding company where applicable).

3. All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in
payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI, or being a member of a stock exchange, has
been declared as defanlter by that stock exchange.

4. Nocasual vacancy occurs during the year under review.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct™ and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company atong with its supporting policies and procedures.

6. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEQ and
other executive directors have been taken by the board/sharcholders.

8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a director elected
by the board for this purpose. The board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the board
meetings, along with agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before the meetings.
The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and cireulated,

9. Having minimum 14 years of education by all of directors and minimum 16 years of experience by 5 out of 7
directors on the board make them exempt from any director's training program.

Since the company is facing financial crunch these days due to closure of its manufacturing operation
because of some irrepressible factors, so the training program for remaining directors is being deferred.
However, the company intends to arrange for orientation course for the remaining directors in future.

10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including

.
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Lahore.

their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

. The director's report for this vear has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and

fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the

board.

The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

The board has formed an audit committee. The staff is considered to be suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and is fully conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company,

The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and
final results of the Company as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the committee have been
formed and advised to the committee for compliance.

The board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee, [t comprises (3) members of whom (2) are non-
executive directors and the chairman of the committee is a non-executive director.

The board has setup an effective internal audit function, which has been effectively implemented.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review programme of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses
and minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance
with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

The 'closed period’ prior fo the announcement of interim/final results and business decisions which may
materially affect the market price of Company's securities, was determined and intimated to directors,

employees and stock exchange(s).

Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through
stock exchange(s).

Allrelated party transactions entered during the year were at arm's length basis and these have been placed
before the Audit Committee and Board of Directors. These transactions are duly reviewed and approved by
Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

We confirm that all other materia! principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

Forand on Behalf of the Board

Mian Muhammad Jehangir

QOctober 05,2016 Chief Executive Officer
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SARWARS TELEPHONES: OFF. 3578 29 20-22
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS FAX 35773825

E-mail: sarwar@sarwarsca.com
sarwar.sca@gmail.com
Web:  www.sarwarsca.com

Off:# 12-14, 2nd Floor, Lahore Centre,
77-D, Main Boulevard, Gulberg-I1i, Lahore,

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH BEST PRACTICES OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate
Governance prepared by the Board of Directors of MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LIMITED, the company for the
year ended June 30, 2016to comply with the requirements of the Clause No. 5.19.23 of the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code of
Corporate Governance and report if it does not. Areview is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider
whether the Board of Director's statement on internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on
the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code of Corporate Governance requires the company to place before the Audit Committee and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Director's for their review and approval its
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording proper
justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of
requirement to the extent of approval of related party transactions by the Board of Director's and upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related
party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, subject to audit observations expressed in our audit report effecting the compliance with the
Code of Corporate Governance, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the best
practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2016.

SARWARS
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
Octeber 05,2016 Engagement Partner; Mr. Rashid Sarwar (FCA)

LAHORE.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30" Annual General Mesting of the Shareholders of Mian Textile
Industries Limited will be held on Monday October 31, 2016 at 11:00 A.M at the Registered Office of the
Company at 29-B/7, Model Town, Lahore to transact the following business:-

Ordinary Business:
1. Toconfirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company held on October
31,2015

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company together with the Directot's
and Auditor's reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2016.

3. Toappoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending on June 30", 2017.

4. Totransactany other business with the permission of the Chairman.

By order of the Board
Lahore: Muhammad Masud Mufti
Dated: October 05,2016 Company Secretary

Notes:

a) The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 22, 2016 to October 31, 2016
{(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Registered Office of the Company up to the close of
business on October 21, 2016 will be intime to affect the voting rights at the meeting.

b) Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at this meeting must
bring his/her CNIC with him/her to prove his/her identity, and in case of proxy must enclose an attested copy
of his/her CNIC. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual documents required for such

purpose

) The Shareholders are requested to notify the Company, the change in their address, if any, immediately to
the Company's Registrar Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. — H. M. House 7, Bank Square, Lahore.

d) Members are requested to provide by mail or fax, photocopy of their CNIC and email address to enable the
Company to comply with the relevant laws.
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Mian Textile Industries Limited, | am pleased to welcomea you to the 30" Annual General
Meeting of the Company and submit their report together with audited financial statements of the Company and Auditor's Report
thereon for the yearended June 30, 20186.

During the period, the company earned rental income from lease agreement of its weaving unit however, on the other hand the
spinning unit remained closed because the lessee terminated the agreement in February-2015 and due to Irrepressible adverse
candition prevailing in the market the management could not find another party interested for agreemeant on conversion or lease
hasis sofar.

The Financial resulis of the Company are summarized below:

2016 2015

(Rs. in '0009 (Rs. in ‘000"
Continuing operations:
Sales - -
Gro ss Profit - -
Rental income from investment property 27,389 30,753
Operating Loss {12,160} (4,816 )
Finance cost 8,775 9,854
Loss before taxation {171) {30,631 )
Provision for taxation - -
Loss after taxation {171) (30,631)
Comprehensive Income/{ Loss) for the year 86,450 (26,397)
EP.S (0.01) (1.39)

Future outlook
Despite adverse market condition, the management of the company is stilt striving hard to coup with the situation but the market
condition is getting more aggravated day by day.

During the year the management has succeeded to make full & final paymeant to NIE Bank Limited and Industrial Development
Bank Limited as per settlement agreements made with them from the funds/loans provided by the Directorsffamily members.
These banks have issued Clearance Certificates/NOCs accordingly.

Furthermore, the management has succeeded to make out of court settlement with The Bank of Punjab amicably on 29 of
August-2016 and the Company has paid Rs. 19.414 million on account of 50% down payment as per the above setttement
agreement.

The management is hopeful that it would also be able to get its remaining loans rescheduled/sstled with the remaining
banks/leasing company, as done by its major banks for which a petition under section 284 & 285 of the Companias Ordinance
1984 for enforcing compromise amangst the company and all of its creditor Banks has also been filed by the Company in the
Lahore High Court. The sponsoring directors/family members have already provided funds/loans for payment of settiement
amounts to the banks in their personal capacity.

Dividend

Inview of the losses sustained, the directors have not recommended any dividend for the period ended as at June 30, 20186.

Notes
Furthermore, we give hereunder our comments on the observations recorded by the company's auditors in their repor.

A, The Company so far has managed to survive in this tough time through continued support by the lenders and
sponsoring directors by providing funding/loans (during the year further funds/loan of Rs. 78.693 million provided
by the directors/family members). The overall condition of Textile Industry has further aggravated and the
management s still struggling hard to keep the mills operational through lease agreement with other parties.

The management has succeeded to make out of court settlement with its major banks and has already paid the

H



major portion of the settled amounts to the hanks and is hopeful that it would also be able to getits remaining loans
rescheduled/settied with the remaining banks/fieasing company as mentioned above.

Inthis regard, the management has given a mitigating plan in Note 3.

B. The Cempany applied to its various banks for rescheduling but they filed suit against Company, which are either
settled or pending before the various Courts. The liability is not at all ascertainable at this stage. The company has
also filed a petition under section 284 & 285 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 for enforcing compromise amongst
the company and all of its creditor Banks in the Lahore High Court. The liability, if any, arising on the judgment by the
Courts would be provided at the material time. Howaver, as a result of setiement already made with major banks,
no mark-up is payable on that loans. The management is hapeful that its outstanding loans with remaining banks
shall also be rescheduled/settle¢ as was done by its major banks, which have waived off the entire
outstanding/deferred mark-up of the Company.

The Company has also filed suits against its various banks for recovery of damages.

C. Themanagementof the Company has diligently cooperated with the auditors to deliver the confirmation lefters and
subsequent reminders {o the banks/leasing company, hence, the Company is not responsibie if those banks have
not responded to their request letters, however, proper supporting documents were provided to the auditors for
verification of outstanding balances of the said banks,

D. Asaresuit of settlement with HBL, there are no foreign currency loans outstanding against the company. Now the
company has to pay the settlementamountin PAK Rupees only, so there is no question for translation of any foreign
currency loan inte Pak Rupees.

E. The managementis of the view that since the loan amount was not charged to the Profit & loss account at the time
when it was availed, so its waiver should also not be booked through the Profit & loss account. However, the amount
of Mark-up written off has classified as part of Profit & loss account.

F.  Due to adverse condition prevailing in the market, a number of mills have already shutdown while remaining are
forced to close down one shift to mitigate losses, Consequently, there are also not much buyers interested for textile
machineries/assats in the market these days. Despite the above facts, the company had to make payments to the
banks to fulfill its commitments made through settlement agreements with its banks. Due to above reason, the
management could not be able to fetch the price of machineries as perrevaluation carried in June 2014.

G. Director's loan amounting to Rs. 38.564 million represents interest-free and unsecured long term loans obtained
from the directors of the Company. The repaymeant terms of the loan have not yet been finalized.

H. Due to ecanomic upheavals and adverse market conditions, the company entered into lease agreement with third
parties. Since there were a very few number of workers of administrative nature remaining during the year till the
close of the year, s0 the management decided not to conduct actuarial valuation this year, which will surely be
conducted in case if the company is able to restart its own production or enter into agreemant with some other party
on conversion basis. However, accruat has been made in accounts on fair estimate basis.

Since the management has valid and justified reasons/basis for all the paragraphs {A} to (H) mentioned in auditor's report, so the

adverse

opinion given by the auditors is totally unjustified and we strictly deny the same. Also the reason they give for the adverse

opinion is that the previous auditors have given the same in their previous report. Some points which were raised in previous

year's a

udit repert have already been resclved; however, most of the remaining points in current year's report shall also be

resoived upon full &finat payment of loans to the banks as per their settlement agresments.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK
The directors also confirm compliance with Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the SECF's Code of Corporate
Governance for the following:

MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LTD Annual Report 2016
,ﬁﬁg i i g e R i

a} The financial statements prepared by the management, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity;

b) Properbooks of aceounts have been maintained by the Company;

¢) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based onreasonabie and prudent judgment;

d) Intermational Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial
statements and any departure there from (if any) has been adequately disclosed;

8} Thesystem ofinternal control is saund in design and has been effectively implemanted and monitored;

f)  There management is struggling hard in current textile crisis to keep the company's ability to continue as a going
concern.

g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance as detailed in the listing
regulations of the stock exchange.

h} Operating and financial data and key ratios of six years are annexed.

2]
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i) Astatementshowing pattern of shareholding is annexed.
i)  During the year, no trading was carried out by the CEO, Diractors, CFO, Company Secretary, their spouses & minor
chiidren.

BOARD MEETING
During the financial year urder consideration, four meetings were held and the attendance by the respective directors was as
follows:

S.No, Name of Directors No. of meetings attended
1 Mian Muhammad Jehangir 4
2 Mian Waheed Ahmed 4
3 Mian Muhammad Nawaz -
4 Mian Wagqar Ahmed -
5 Mian Khurram Jehangir 4
6 Mrs. Nargis Jehangir -
7 Ms. Ayesha Jehangir -
8 Mr. Muhammad Arshad (Nominee-NIT) 4

Leave of absence was granted !o Directors who could not attend the Board meetings.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board constituted an Audit Committee comprising the following Directors:
1. Mian Waheed Ahmed Chairman

2. Mian Khurram Jehangir Member

3. Ms. Ayesha Jehangir Member

HUMAN RESOURCES & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board constituted an HR&R Committee comprising the following Directors:

1. Mian Wagar Ahmed Chairman
2. Mian Khurram Jehangir Member
3. Ms. Ayesha Jehangir Member
AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s SARWARS Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The
auditors of the Company shall be appointed in the forthcoming AGM for the next year ending on 30" June 2017 and their
remuneration shall be fixed.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDINGS
A statement-showing pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2018 is annexed.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We like to place on record our gratitude to the valued clients, regulatory authorities, banks and financial institutions and also the
shareholders for their continued support. We also appreciate the efforts and dedication shown by the staff for managing the
company's affairs successfully during this tough time.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lahore: Mian Muhammad Jehangir
Octcber 05, 2016 Chief Executive Officer
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PERFORMANCE OF LAST SIX YEARS AT GLANCE

FINANCIAL DATA
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit/(loss)

Rental income from investment property

Operating profit/(loss)
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Profit/(loss) after taxation

Comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 86,450

BALANCE SHEET
Paid up capital
Fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

KEY RATIOS

Gross profit/(loss) ratio
Operating profit/(loss) ratio
Net profit/(loss) ratio

Current ratio

Earning/{loss) per share (Rs.)

(RUPEES IN ‘000')

| 2016 | 2015 | 2014 | 2013 [ 2012 [ 2011 |
- - 151,926 233,662 92,965 151,053

- - 155423 240,669 113,636 152,911
- - (3,497)  (7,007) (20,670)  (1,859)

27,399 30,753 - - - -
(12,160)  (4,816) (21,732) (22,899) (35,677) (16,472)
(171)  (30,631) (50,143) (46,423) (52,438) (36,002)
(171) (30,631) (51,663) (47,617) (26,325) (37,601)
(26,397)  (22,752) (36,997) (15,041) (25,604)

221,052 221,052 221,052 221,052 221,052 221,052
392,531 415,083 427,961 575,115 603276 653,651
24,176 30,913 22,696 68,366 81,573 65,368
262,281 226,555 112,809 108,383 128335 89,312
- -230%  -3.00% -22.23%  -1.23%
-4438%  -15.66% -14.30%  -9.80% -38.38%  -10.90%
0.62% -99.60% -34.01% -20.38% -28.32%  -24.89%
1:009 1:014 1:020 1:063 1:064 1:073
(0.01)  (1.39) (2.34)  (2.15) (1.19) (1.70)
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N
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING (As on:- 30-Jun-2016)
No. of Sharehoeldings To Total Number of Percentage of|
Share From Shares Held Total Capétal
Helders

303 1- 100 23,716 0.11

765 101 - 500 332,465 1.50

233 501 - 1000 225,008 1.02

308 1001 - 5000 974,515 4.41

78 5001 - 10000 562,024 2.54

22 10001 - 15000 283,400 1.28

16 15001 - 20000 346,700 1.78

! 20001 - 25000 180,200 0.88

11 25001 - 30000 261,100 1.18

4 30001 - 35000 96,800 0.44

5 35001 - 40000 109,000 0.49

3 40001 - 45000 130,100 0.59

4 45001 - 50000 145,500 0.66

3 50001 - 55000 108,400 0.48

1 55001 - 60000 80,000 0.27

1 60001 - 65000 65,000 0.29

1 65001 - 70000 137,295 0.62

1 00 - 75000 73,500 0.33

1 135001 - 140000 139,000 0.63

1 145001 - 150000 360,000 1.36

2 150001 - 155000 305,500 1.38

1 165001 - 170000 168,000 0.76

1 170001 - 175000 175,000 0.79

1 175001 - 180000 354,000 1.60

1 200001 - 205000 202,868 0.92

1 205001 - 210000 210,000 0.85

1 215001 - 220000 215,734 .98

2 305001 - 310000 308,800 1.40

1 420001 - 425000 420,900 1.90

1 845001 - 650000 845,578 2,92

1 1425001 - 1430000 1,425,800 6.45

1 1950001 - 1955000 1,952,800 8.83

1 2180001 - 2185000 2,185,000 9.88

1 3565001 - 3570000 3,566,198 16.13

1 5355001 - 5360000 5,356,300 24.23

[ 1,782 22,105,200 100.00|

FORM 34

Patten of Holding of Shares
Held by the Share Holders as at 30/06/2016

Categories of Share Holders Numbers  Shares Held %

- Individuals 1744 5,426,271 2455
- Investment Companies 3 33,800 0.15
- insuracne Companies 1 420,900 1.90
- Financial Institution 3 54,715 0.25
- Joint Stock Companies N 15,049 0.07
- Modaraba Companies 4 27,500 0.12
- Mutual Funds 1 69,656 0.32
- CEQ, Directors, Spouses & Relatives 13 16,053,709 72.62
- Others 2 3,600 0.02

TOTAL: 1,782 22,105,200 100.00
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS ON JUNE 30, 2016

ASSOCIATED COMPANY

NIT AND ICP

a) National Bank of Pakistan, Trustee Department
b)Y  Investment Corporation of Pakistan

DIRECTORS

a) Mian Muhammad Jehangir
b} Mian Muhammad Nawaz
¢} Mian Waheed Ahmad

d} Mian Wagar Ahmad

e} Mian Khurram Jehangir

f}  Mrs. Nargis Jehangir

g) Ms. Ayesha Jehangir

DIRECTORS' SPOUSES & MINOR CHILDRENS & RELATIVES

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS

BANKS DEVELOPMENT FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
NON BANKING FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, INSURANCE
COMPANIES, MODARABAS AND MUTUAL FUNDS

GENERAL PUBLIC

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE

Mian Muhammad Jehangir
Mrs. Nargis Jehangir

Mian Khurram Jehangir
Ms. Ayesha Jehangir

No. of Shares

%

NiL -
54,415
12,900

67,315 0.30
5,356,300 24.23
202,868 0.92
2,185,000 0.88
154,000 0.70
1,952,800 8.83
3,566,198 16.13
1,575,809 7.13

14,992,875 67.83
1,060,734 4.80
741,884 3.36
1,118,434 5.06
4,123,858 18.66

22,105,200 100.00
5,356,300 24.23
3,566,198 16.13
1,952,800 8.83
1,575,809 7.3

DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR THE TRADING IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY BY THE CEOC, DIRECTORS,
CFO, COMPANY SECRETARY AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDERN IS AS FOLLOW:

NIL
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SARWARS TELEPHONES: OFF. 3578 29 20-22

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS FAX 357738125

E-mail: sarwar@sarwarsca.com
sarwar.sca@gmail.com
Web:  www.sarwarsca.com

Off:# 12-14, 2nd Floor, Lahore Centre,
77-D, Main Boulevard, Guiberg-IIi, Lahore.

AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LIMITED as at June 30, 2016, and the
related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes
in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company's management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements are free ot
any material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statements.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(A)  Equity as per balance sheet as on June 30, 2016 shows adverse balance of Rs, 377,369 million, The current
Habilities on afore-said date are amounting to Rs. 262,281 million while the current assets are Rs. 24.176
million. The current liabilities have exceeded the current assets by Rs. 238.105million, The un-provided
foreign exchange loss amounting Rs. 170.465 million in paragraph (I3) and un-provided markup of Rs.
95.151 in paragraph (B)when charged, the equity adverse balance will increase to Rs. 642.985 million
{without impairment loss of machinery not determinable at this stage} while excess of current liabilities
over the current assets will increase to Rs. 503.721. As per profit and loss zccount, the loss amounting to Rs.
0.171 million has been sustained in current year 2016 and the Company continuously has sustained losses
for more than a decade. Despite further funds of Rs. 78.993 million brought in the Company by the directors
and sponsors during the year, the Company is short of liquid funds and is not in a position to make payment
of short term loans as per its commitment with banks.

The above condition indicates that material uncertainty exists which cast significant doubt on the Company
ability to continue as a going concern and may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business. No adjustment is made in financial statement which may resutt from this
uncertainty. The financial statements are prepared by the management on-going concern basis and for the
reason recorded onnote 3.
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The company has not provided markup on outstanding loans and leasing liabilities note (8.8.1) aggregating
to Rs. 95.151 million and accumulated losses has been understated to that extent while the current year's loss
isunderstated by Rs. 84.739 million. Mark up on settled loan is accounted for at cost of fund.

Due to litigation with banks and leasing companies, confirmation letters sent to The Bank of Punjab,
National bank of Pakistan and First National Bank Modaraba for confirmation of principal loan balances
and markup outstanding as on June 30, 2016 were not responded despite the repeated requests. Therefore,
their outstanding loan balances amounting Rs, 93,372 million and mark up of Rs. 184.849 million remained
un-confirmed as at June 30, 2016.

Foreign currency loans disclosed at note (8.6) are not translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing as on 30.06.2016, as required by ISA-21 as a result of which non-current liabilities and loss for
the year are understated by Rs.170.465 million and accumulated losses are also reduced by that extent,

The company has classified the financial liabilities written off amounting to Rs. 81.725 million as part of
statement of comprehensive income rather than profit and loss account, hence the Derecognition rule of
financial liabilities as per IFRS 9 has not been complied with.

The company incurred a loss of 0.927 million on sale of non-current assets held for sale. No valuation as at
the reporting date of this sale were made available. The management has not carried out any impairment
testing as per LAS-36 to assess for indications that the carrying cost of the machinery as per books is higher
than its present market value/ fair value and, in our opinion the Company has not followed its procedure for
provision of impairment loss laid down atnote (4.10).

In view of heavy loss, it was obligatory for the company to get its assets revalued as at June 30, 2016 and
make the provision for the impairment loss, if any on the carrying amount of machinery of Rs. 100.544
million included at note (19.1) of fixed assets. In the absence of valuation report the impairment is not
determinable.

No terms and conditions regarding repayment of directors' loan amounting to Rs.38.564 million are made as
stated at note (7) and in the absence of such agreement as required by TAS-39 for amortization of loan cannot
be futfilled, and IAS — 39 has not been complied with.

Due to non-valuation of gratuity note (10.2} approved by the actuarial valuers, the provision of TAS-19 has
not been complied with.

In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

in our opinion:

(i the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account
and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;
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(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

(iii)  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were
inaccordance with the objects of the Company;

in our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, because of
the significance of the matters discussed in paragraphs (A} to (H) the balance sheet, profit and loss account,
statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with
the notes forming part thereof do not conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and, do not give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so
required and respectively do not give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30,
2016 and of the loss, its comprehensive loss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended;
and

in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980,

Note: The Financial Statements as June 30, 2015 were audited by another auditor.

SARWARS
CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
October05, 2016 Engagement Partner:  Mr. Rashid Sarwar (FCA)

LAHORE.
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Equity and Liabilities

Share capital and reserves
Share capital
Accumulated loss

Surplus on revaluation of
Property, plant & equipment

Non-current liabilities

Director's bridge finance & loan

Long term financing

Liabilities against assets subject
to finance lease

Deferred liabilities

Long term deposits

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short term borrowings

Current and overdue portion
of non-current liabiities

Provision for taxation

Contingencies and commitments

Liabilities directly associated with
Non-Current assets held for sale

Note

10
11

12
13
14

15
16

17

18

BALANCE SHEET

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Auditor's report as per annexed.

MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR
Chief Executive

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
221,052,000 221,052,600
(598,420,827) {684,870,520)
(377,368,827) {463,818,520)
225,890,806 230,785,779
96,563,713 38,563,713
54,545,342 222,110,611
20,949,639 20,949,639
137,450,483 169,754,018
1,111,111 4,444,444
37,007,580 48,448,598
124,544,465 103,551,276
100,728,751 74,555,556
262,280,796 226,555,430
- 5,000,000
421,423,064 454,345,114
MIAN WAHEED AHMED
Director
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Properties and Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Long term deposits

Current assets
Stores and spares
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and
short term prepayments
Tax refunds due from Government

Cash and bank balances

Assets held for sale

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

Auditor's report as per annexed.

MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR
Chief Executive

Note

19
20

21

22
23
24

25

26
27

28

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
293,509,327 316,061,880
09,021,428 99,021,428
3,648,244 3,648,244
504,878 637,325
3,646,794 19,038,140
597,120 592,706
6,167,980 6,281,413
6,217,595 2,471,567
7,041,286 1,891,694
24,175,653 30,912,845
1,068,412 4,700,717
421,423,064 454,345,114
MIAN WAHEED AHMED
Director
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees

Continuing operations
Sales 29 - -
Cost of sales 30 - -
Gross profit - -
Rental income from investment property 31 27,399,187 30,753,023
Operating Profit 27,399,187 30,753,023
Operating expenses

Rental expense of investment property 32 4,507,459 1,249,750

Distribution cost 33 1,044,542 992,292

Administrative expenses 34 34,006,709 33,327,201

39,558,710 35,569,243
Operating loss (12,159,523) (4,816,220)
Other operating charges 35 15,072,769 18,937,266
Other operating income 36 36,736,252 3,016,515
Finance cost 37 8,774,647 9,894,483
Profit /(Loss) before taxation (170,687) (30,631,454)
Taxation 38 - -
Profit /{Loss) for the year after taxation {170,687) (30,631,454)
Earning /(Loss) per share - basic & diluted 39 (0.01) (1.39)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR MIAN WAHEED AHMED

Chief Executive

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees

Profit /(Loss) for the year after taxation (170,687} {30,631,454)
Other comprehensive income - -
Items that are not classified to profit and loss:
Long term Financial Liabifities written off 81,725,407 -
Transferred from surplus on Revaluation of Fixed assets on account of:

Incremental depreciation charged during the year 3,870,305 4,135,146

Disposal of Plant and Machinery 1,024,668 99,057
Total comprehensive income /{loss) for the year 86,449,693 (26,397,251)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR MIAN WAHEED AHMED

Chief Executive Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE

30, 2016

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation from operations (170,687) (30,631,454)
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation 14,118,439 15,611,221
Provisicn for gratuity 442,184 581,061
Loss/{Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 926,660 (277,370)
Loss on disposal of non-current asset held for sale (machinery) - 17,071,515
Un-claimed balances written back {36,329,396) (2,290,640)
Profit on security deposit (SNGPL) (384,250) {448,505}
Provision raised for Claims receivable being bad of recovery - 28,757
Provision raised for Doubtful debts 15,046,105 1,836,924
Excess provision written off (22,6086) -
Finance cost 8,774,647 9,894,483
2,571,787 42,007,516
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,401,100 11,376,062
Adjustments for Working Capital Changes
{Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores and spares 132,447 (520,724)
Trade debts 15,391,346 (8,218,651}
Loans and advances (4,414) (211,501)
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables 113,433 (931,421)
Tax refunds due from Government 416,099 (21,070)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables {11,441,018) 2,862,127
Short term borrowings 20,993,189 38,619,440
Net working capital changes 25,601,082 31,578,200
Finance cost paid (963,657) (3,614,382)
Gratuity paid {(127,043) {127,608)
Income tax paid (4,162,127) (1,629,510)
(5,252,827) (5,371,500)
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 22,749,356 37,582,762
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, plant and equipment purchased (822,872) {2,304,078)
Investment property - (3,293,428)
Proceeds from dispesal of property, plant and equipment 12,522,127 15,221,967
Met cash (used in) / generated from investing activities 11,699,255 9,624,461
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Directors' bridge finance loan 58,000,000 -
Long term financing (66,158,686) (54,000,000)
Deferred liabilities (12,807,000) -
tong term deposits (3,333,333) 10,000,000
Liabilities associated with Non-Current assets held for sale {5,000,000) (3,000,000}
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (29,299,019 _ (47,000,000}
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,149,592 207,223
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,891,694 1,684,471
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 27 7,041,286 1,891,694
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR MIAN WAHEED AHMED

Chief Executive Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Share Accumulated | Shareholders'
Particulars Capital Loss Equity
--------------- Rupees-—r----m-mm---
Balance as at June 30, 2014 221,052,000  (658,473,269)  (437,421,269)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year (26,397,251) {26,397,251)
Balance as at June 30, 2015 221,052,000  (684,870,520) (463,818,520)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the year - 86,449,693 86,449,693
Balance as at June 30, 2016 221,052,000  (598,420,827) (377,368,827)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR MIAN WAHEED AHMED
Chief Executive Director
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Mian Textile Industries Limited, "the Company”, was incorporated in Pakistan on December 01, 1986 as a Public Limited
Company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Its shares are quoted on Karachi and Lahore Stock Exchanges. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 29-B/7, Model Town, Lahore and its manufacturing facilities are located at 48,5
K.M. Multan Road, Bhai Pheru, Tehsil Chunian, District Kasur. The Company was principally engaged in the business of
manufacturing, sale and export of textile products. It ceased production of yarn and cloths since 2010 and conversion services
were extended to other parties. The company resumed its own production of cloth in last quarter of the year 2012 but has
closed Weaving Unit with effect from November 2013, Most of the Weaving machinery has been sold out to sub-sidise the
loans settlerment agreements with banks. The management has no intention of resuming Weaving section in future. Weaving
section building has been leased to a third party for 3 years and agreement will expire in October 2017. Spinning section
machinery, factory building were leased to third party for one year up to 31st July 2015 but agreement was terminated by
lessee in February 2015. The management intends to run spinning unit by itsef or to enter an agreement with some other
interested party on conversion basis in the near future, and is comprehensively persuing this option,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financizl statements have been prepared with In accordance and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(the Ordinance) and directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, and approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Accounting Standards
(IASs) / International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as notified under the provisions of the Ordinance. In case the
requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan differs with the
reguirements of these standards, the requirements of the Ordinance or the requirements of the said directives shall prevail.

2.1 Standards, amendments or interpretations that became effective during the year

During the year certaln amendments to Standards or new interpretations became effective, howaver, the amendments
or interpretation were either not relevant to the Company’s operations or were not expected to have any significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

2.2 New / revised accounting standards, amendments to published accounting standards, and interpretations
that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendmenis and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
Periods Beginning on or After

-IFRS 13 Fair value measurement January 1, 2016
-IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements January 1, 2016
-IFRS 11 Joint arrangements January 1, 2016
- IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities January 1, 2016
-IAS16 & 38  Clarification of Acceptable Method of

Cepreciation and Amortization January 1, 2016
-IAS 16 841 Agriculture: Bearer Plants January 1, 2016

The management anticipates that adoption of above new standards and amendments of the standards will have no
material impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which
have not been notified up te June 30, 2016 by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), for the
purpose of their applicability in Pakistan:
Standard IASH Effective Date

Pericds Beginning on or After

-IFRS & Financial instruments January 1, 2018
-1FRS 14 Regulatory Defertal Accounts January 1, 2017
~IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers January 1, 2018

The company has applied these standards to the extent and manner as applicable without any changes in the accountig
policies of the company.
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3 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION .

These finandial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except certain property, plant and
equipment shown at revalued amounts as stated in Note 19, investment property shown at fair value amounts as stated in
Note 20, using, except for cash flow statements, accrual basis of accounting.

These financial statements are prepared on the assumption that the company will continue as a going concern for a
foreseeable future. The company has suffered a loss of Rs. 0.171 million during the year ended June 30, 2016 (2015: Loss of
Rs. 30.631 million) and accumulated losses are of Rs.598.421 million (2015: Rs. 684.870 miflion). The current liabilities of the
company have exceeded over current assets by Rs. 238.105 million (2015: Rs. 195.642 million) as at the balance sheat date.
Although the Weaving machinery is sofd for liquidation of banks loans but still financial difficulties exist. These conditions cast a
significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statement do not include
adjustments results from this uncertainty and financial statements are prepared on going concern basis for reasons stated

below.
3.1 Mitigating Plans

The management has decided to take following steps for improvement in the business activities:

3.1.1 During the year 2013 the management had succeeded to make an amicable setflement agreements with its major
hankers i.e. NIB Bank Limited, Industrial Development Bank Limited and Habib Bank Limited in June 2013, August
2013 and November 2013 respectively. During the year the company has fully paid off the entire lability as per
settlement agreement with NIB Bank Limited and Industrial Development Bank Limited. The management is very
hopeful that it would also be able to get its remaining loans rescheduled/settled with the remaining banks and
leasing company. The company has also filed a petition in Lahore High Court under section 284 & 285 of the
Companies Ordinance 1984 for enforcing compromise amangst the company and all of its creditor Banks. The
management is of the view that if as proposed, the agreements are executed for rescheduling the bank loans,
finance cost shall substantially be reduced and by injecting further working capital, the company will be able to
resume its business in near future.
-, 31.2 The management had succeeded to enter into a Lease agreement with third party on 28th October 2014 for lease
a of building of its Weaving unit for a period of 3 years and hopeful that it will be extended for further period.

3.1.3 Due to irrepressible adverse condition prevailing in the market the management of the company is actively
pursuing for agreement on conversion or lease basis regarding spinning unit.

3.1.4 The company aims to settle its suits filed by certain banks, the Company has made amicable settlement with its
major banks and trying to settle their liabilities through sale of machinery and or through funding by the
Directors/their family members.

By payment of settlement amounts to the banks, the Company will have the following benefits:

M Litigations with the banks shall be closed.
(i) Banks Liabilities/financial/legal charges shall be substantially reduced.
(i) The Company shall be in a position to obtain working capital facilities from banks to run the Spinning

Unit more efficiently.

(iv) The Company will be able to reduce loss being sustained due to non-availability of working capitat and
wear & tear of the old machinery. '

3.1.5 The directors are committed to provide leans in their personal capacity. They have already provided loans on
account of bridge finance and short term horrowings,

As a result of above steps, the management is of the view that it will be able to run the business successfully and are
very hopefull that the GOP will adopt such policies which aims to revive the textile industry.

See also note no.46 {Events Subsequent to the balance sheet date).
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Significant estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, These estimates and associated assumptions and
judgments are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgment about carrying values of assets and liabifities
that are not readily apparent from other scurces. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The accounting estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised If the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of revision and future periods if revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgments were exercised in
application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Useful life of depreciable assets {note. 4.8)

- Investment property (note. 4.9)

- Pravisions for doubtful receivables {note, 4.13)

- Slow moving inventory (note. 4.11, 4.12)

- Taxation (note. 4.7)

- Impairment {note. 4.10)

- Fair value measurement (note. 4.21)

However, the management believes that the change in outcome of the estimates would not have a significant effect on
the amount disclosed in the finandal statements.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of past events and 1t is

probable that an outflow of resources wilf be required te settle these obligations and a refiable estimate of the amounts
can be made.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an un-funded gratuity scheme for all its employees according to the terms of their employment.
Under this scheme, gratuity is paid to the retiring employees on the basis of their last drawn basic salary for each
completed year of service.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration o be paid
or given in the future for goods and services received or to be delivered or for any other amount, whether or not billed
to the Company.

Contingencies

The Company has disclosed significant contingent liabilities for the pending litigation and claims against the Company
hased on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome. The actual outcome of
these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the balance sheet
date. However, based on the best judgment of the Company and its legal advisors, the likely outcome of these
litigations and claims is remote and there is no need to recognize any liability at the balance sheet date.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account tax
credits and tax rebates available, if any, or minimum tax at the applicable rate of tax on turnover under section 113 of
the Income Tax QOrdinance, 2001, whichever is higher.

Deferred

Deferred tax lability is accounted for in respect of all taxable temporary differences at the balance sheet date arising
from difference between the carrving amount of the assets and liabitities in the financial statements and corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available
in future against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is celculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is to be realized or
liability is to be settled.
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4.8 Property, plant and equipment

4.8.1

4.8.2

4.8.3

4.8.4

Operating fixed assets

Owned assets

Property, plantand equipment are stated at cost/revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and identified
impairment losses, if any, except freehold land which is stated at revalued amount. Cost of property, plant and
equipment consists of historicat cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction and erasction period and
directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition.

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient reqularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ
materially from their fair value. Revalued amount has been determined by an independent professional valuer on
the basis of open market value of the asset based on estimated gross replacement cost, depreciated to reflect
the residual service potential of the asset having paid due regard to age, condition and obsolescence. Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset,
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Cost in relation to self constructed assets
Includes direct cost of material, lzbor and other allocable expenses.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of plant and equipment are credited to surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets. Decreases that offset avaitable surplus are charged against this surplus, all other
decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year the difference between depreciation based on revalued carrying
amount of the asset (the depreciation charged to the prefit or loss) and depreciation based on the asset's original
cost - incremental/decremental depreciation on revalued assets is transferred to/from surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets from/to retained earnings (accumulated loss). All transfers to/from surplus cn revaluation are net of
applicable deferred taxation.

Depreciation is charged to income by applying reducing balance method without taking into account any residual
value at the rates specified in Note 19. The remaining useful life of the depreciable assets and depreciation
method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the depreciation method and periods of depreciation are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from property, plant and equipment. Full menth's
depreciation is charged on additions to fixed assets during the month, where as no depreciation is charged on the
assets disposed off during the month. The Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment an
annual hasis Where an impairment loss Is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to
allocate the assets revised carrying amount over its estimated usefus life.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are included in current year's income.
p prop p P

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and replacements
are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, other than those kept as stand by, are retired.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified Impairment losses. All expenditure connected with
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work in progress.
These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are available for use.

Leased assets
Finance lease

These are stated at the lower of present value of minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the
fair value of the assets. The related obligations of lease are accounted for as liabilities. Financial charges are
allocated to accounting periods in & manner so as to provide a constant periodic rate of finandial cost on the
remaining balance of principal liability for each period.

Depreciation is charged on the basls similar to operating fixed assets applying reducing balance method at the
rates specified in Note 19 to write off the cost of the asset over its estimated remaining useful life in view of
certainty of ownership of assets at the end of the lease periods.

Insurance and other maintenance costs are borne by the Company.
Finance cost and depreciation on Jeased assets are charged to current year's income.

Operating leases

Lease rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant leases.

Non-Current assets held for sale
Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell, if their carrying value is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction with in

one year of the date of balance sheet rather then through continuing use and depreciation on such assets cease.
Also refer to Note No. 28.
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4.9

4.10

4.11

4,12

Investment property

Properties which are hald to earn rantals or for capital appreciation or for both are classified as investrnent properties.
Investment properties are initially recegnized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given. Subsequently these
are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
crderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date.. Also refer to Note No. 4.21.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is charged to profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4.19.
Subsequent expenditure s capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure wil! flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Al
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

Latest fair market valuation was carried out by the independent valuer en June 39, 2014 and the management is of the
view that there is no material change in the valuation as at June 30, 2016.

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the Company determines with sufficient regularity the fair value of the
items of investment property based on available active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. Valuations wherever needed are performed as of the reporting date
by professional valuers who hold recognized and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the
tocation and category of the investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the carrying
amounts in the financial statements. The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure
that will improve or enhance the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure
other than those a rationat market participant wouid take into account when determining the value of the property.
When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to invastment property following a change in its use, any
difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the iteam immediately prior to transfer and its
falr value is recognized in surplus on revaluation of fixed assets. Upon disposal of the item, the related surplus on
revaluation is transferred to retained earings (accumulated loss). Any loss arising in this manner is immediately
charged to profit or loss.

If an investment property becomes owner-cccupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes for subsequent recording.

An item of Investment property is derecognized either when disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits is expected from its disposal.

Impairment

The management assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset is impaired. If any
such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the asset, If the racoverabie amount of
the asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount by
charging the impairment foss against income for the year,

Stores and spares

These are valued at tower of moving average cost and net, realizable value except for items in transit that are valued at
cost comprising the invoice value plus incidental charges paid thereon till the balance sheet date. Provision is made
against obsolete and slow maving tems.

Stock in trade
Basis of valuation are as follows:
In 2016 there was no stocks. However, in earlier years these were valued in following manners.

Particuiars Mode of valuation

Raw materials At lower of moving average cost and net realizable value.

Stocks in transit At cost comprising the invoice value plus incidental charges paid thereon.

Work-in-process At estimated average manufacturing cost.

Finished goods At fower of average manufacturing cost and net realizable value.

Wastes At net realizable value.

Store & spares At moving average cost.

Cost in relation to work in process consists of prime cost and attributable production overheads.

Net reatizable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less completion cost and cost necessary
to be incurred to effect such sate.
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4,13 Trade debts and other receivables
Receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivable balances based on
review of outstanding amounts at year end. Bad debts are written off when identified,

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and at banks.
4,15 Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on the accrual basis.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantizlly ready for their intended use or sale. Alt other borrowing
costs are charged to income in the period in which these are incurred.

4,16 Foreign currency translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at rates of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date and in case of forward exchange contracts at the committed rates. Gains or losses on exchange are
charged to income.

4.17 Financial instruments
All the financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments and are remeasured at fair value. Any gainfloss on de-recognition and on
remeasurement of such financial instruments other than investments available for sale, is charged to Income for the
period in which it arises.

4,18 Related party transactions
Ajl transactions between company and related party are accounted for at arm'’s length price as an independent business
in accordance with ‘comparable Uncontrolled Price Method'. The company has voluntarily applied Sub-Regulation (Xiii) of
listing reguiations 37 notified by the Karachi Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited vide circular KSE/N-269 dated
January 19, 2009 requires the company to place before the board of directors for their consideration and of approvat
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions cartied out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm's length transactions in accordance with normal business price recording proper justification for using if any,
alternate pricing mechanism.

4,19 Revenue recognition
(i)  Local sales are recorded when goods are delivered to customers and invoices raised.
(i)  Export sales are booked on shipment basis on receipt of bill of lading.
(iiiy Processing charges are recorded when goods are delivered to customers and invoices raised.
{iv) Gain on 'sale and lease-back’ transactions that result in finance lease, is deferred and amortized over the lease
(v) Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
(vi) Profits on short term deposits is accounted for on time apportioned basis on the principal eutstanding and at the

rate applicable. )

(vil) Rental income from investment properties is credited to profit or loss on accrual basis.
At present the company earns rental income and profit on deposits only.

4,20 Off setting of financial assets and liabitities

Finandial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the company intends to either settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and to settle the Habilities simulitaneously.

4,21 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market
to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk. When
applicable, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument and non-financlal assets carried at fair value, using
the quoted price in an active market for that instrument and non-financial assets carried at fair value. A market is
regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.
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When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates alt
the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing & transaction. The best evidence of the fair value
of a financiat instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price l.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received. If the Company determines that the fair value at initfal recognition differs from the transaction price
and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based
on a valuation technigue that uses only data from observable markeis, the financial instrument is initially measured at
fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is credited or charged to profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the
instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is
closed out.

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer,

2016 2015
5 SHARE CAPITAL Rupees Rupees
Authorized capital
22,500,000 (2015: 22,500,000} ordinary
shares of Rupees 10 each 225,000,000 225,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
22,105,200 (2015: 22,105,200) ordinary
shares of Rupees 1@ each fully paid up in cash 221,052,000 221,052,000
6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Opening balance 230,785,779 235,019,982
Surplus on investment property - {76,560,233)
Surplus on other operating assets 230,785,779 158,459,749
Surplus transferred to accumulated loss:
- Incremental depreciation charged during the year (3,870,305) (4,135,146)
- Disposal during the year (1,024,668) (99,057)
Surplus on other operating assets 225,890,806 154,225,546
Surplus on investment property - 76,560,233
225,890,806 230,785,779
6.1  As a result of revaluations of property, plant and equipment carried out in May 2008, April 2004 and September 1995,
surplus of Rs. 762.469 million was raised that was credited to 'surplus on reveluation of property, plant and equipment’
in terms of Section 235 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. In 2014 the Land, Building and Plant & Machinery were
revalued by approved Independent Valuer- Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt) Ltd., Lahore,
Refer to Note No. 19.1. & 19.4.
6.2  The Company adopted IAS 40 ‘investrnent property’ in 2015 and applied fair value model of accounting as basis for
measurement of investment property. All investment properties are measured under IFRS 13 'fair value measurement'
and there is no any significant change in fair value as the assets were recently revalued as at June 30, 2014,
Refer to Note No. 4.5, 6.1, 19.1, 19.4 & 20,
7 DIRECTORS' BRIDGE FINANCE & LOAN
Intarest Bearing Loan 58,000,000 -
Non-Interest Bearing Loan 7.1 38,563,713 38,563,713

96,563,713 38,563,713

7.1 This represents interestfree and unsecured long term loans obtained from the directors of the Company. The

repayment terms of the loan have yet not been finalized.
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2016 2015
8 LONG TERM FINANCING Note Rupees Rupees

Financing from banking companies:
The Bank of Punjab 8.1 38,827,229 38,827,229
National Bank of Pakistan - DF-I 8.2 45,000,000 45,000,000
National Bank of Pakistan - DF-II 8.3 {a) 8,000,000 8,000,000
National Bank of Pakistan - DF-TIY 8.3 {b) 1,545,342 1,545,342
Habib Bank Limited 8.4 25,000,000 25,000,000
Habib Bank Limited 8.5 14,959,598 14,959,598
Habib Bank Limited 8.6 13,053,035 34,553,035
NIB Bank Limited 8.7 - 123,225,407

146,385,204 291,110,611
Less: current portion shown under current liabilities 15.0 91,839,862 £9,000,000

54,545,342 222,110,611

8.1 The Bank of Punjab:

This represents Demand Finance obtained from The Bank of Punjab. It was repayable in 17 equal quarterly instalments
commencing from July 2010 and carries mark-up at 3 Months KIBOR + 140 bps with no floor to be paid quarterly. It is
secured against collaterals and equitable mortgage on industriai land in the name of directors of the Company, personal
guarantees of the owners/ directors' property with a ranking charge of Rs. 53.773 million over all the present and future
current and fixed assets of the Company. Sanctioned limit originally is Rs. 38.827 milfion valid upto 31-07-2014.

The Company has filed a suit for damages against Bank of Punjab for recovery of claims and damages of Rs. 140.253
million. The legal advisors vide letter dated August 08, 2016 have stated that there is no scope of any loss to the
company. This suit is presently pending adjudication before Lahore High Court Lahore. The legal advisor has confirmad
that a settlement has been affected amongst the parties.

Refer to note 17.6. ==

The Bank of Punjab has afso filed a suit against the company for recovery of Rs. 56.298 million as confirmed by the legal
advisor vide their letter dated August 08, 2016. This sult is also presently pending adjudication before Lahore High Court
Lahore, The legal advisor has also confirmed that a settlement has been affected amongst the parties, in terms
whereof, this suit will be withdrawn upon completion of settlement.

Request to the bank for balance confirmation were not responded.

The management has subsequently made a settlement agreement as on August 29, 2016 with Bank of Punjab and this
loan will be payable by January 01, 2017. see also note no. 46,

8.2  National Bank of Pakistan DF-I:
This represents Demand Finance sanctioned by the National Bank of Pakistan. It is repayable in 16 equal quarterly
instalments commencing from February 2011 and carries mark-up at 3 Months KIBOR + 3.5% p.a. with no floor / cap
fo be paid quarterly. It is secured against ranking charge of Rs. 45 million on fixed assets of the Company including
40% margin and personal guarantees of all sponsoring directors.

8.3 (a) National Bank of Pakistan DF-II:
This represents Demand Finance sanctioned by the National Bank of Pakistan. It is repayable in 4 equal quarterly
instalments of Rs, 2 million each commencing from February 2015 and carries no mark-up. It is secured against ranking
charge of Rs. 13.333 million on fixed assets of the Company and personal guarantees of all sponsoring directors.

8.3 (b) Nationa! Bank of Pakistan DF-III:

Cash Finance facility of Rs. 75 million (reduced from Rs. 150 million) sanctioned by the bank for meeting the working
capital requirements of the Company. This facility carties mark-up at 3 Months KIBOR plus 2% per annum without
floor/cap payable quarterly. Tt is secured against pledge of raw materials and personal guarantees of all the sponsoring
directors of the Company. This facility has expired on September 30, 2009. Refer to note, 10.1.4,

The National Bank of Pakistan has filed a suit against the company and others for recovery of Rs. 77.252 million as
confirmed by the legal advisor vide their letter dated August 08, 2016. This suit is also presently pending adjudication
before Lahore High Court Lahore and is being vigorously contested by the Company.

fegal advisor vide their letter dated August 08, 2016 has confirmed that a Petition under section 284 & 285 of the
Companies Ordinance 1984 for enforcing compromise amongst the Company and all of its creditor Banks has been filed
by the Company before the Lahore High Court Lahore vide CO No.24/2013. The Company is vigilantly pursuing this
case. There is no scope of any loss to the Company.

Refer to note 17.12, 17.13 and 10.1.4.

Request to the bank for balance confirmation were not responded.




MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LTD. Annual Report 2016

8.4 Habib Bank Limited - FAPC (Pledge)}

This represents certain utilized portion of finance against packing credit FAPC (Pledge) of Rs., 62.874 million (utilized)
from Habib Bank Limited as of 15-10-2009 to meet the working capital requirements of the company that carries mark
up at 3 Months KIBOR plus 2% subject to a floor rate of 12% per annum & (LIBOR plus 2.5% per annum with floor of
5.50% per annum in case of foreign finance). All the facilities expired on 31-12-2009.

8.5 Habib Bank Limited - FAPC (Hypo)

This represents short term facility (FAPC-Hypo) of Rs, 56.442 million (uiilized) & Running finance of Rs, 2.98 million
{utilized), obtained from the bank that carries mark up at 3 Months KIBOR plus 2% with floor of 12% per annum
{LIBOR plus 2.5% per annum with floor 5.5% per annum in case of foreign finance). The loan is secured against ranking
hypothecation and 1st pari passu/ranking charges on current and fixed assets of the company. All the facilities expired
on 31-12-2009,

8.6 Habib Bank Limited

This represents certain utilized portion of finance against packing credit FAPC (Pledge) of Rs. 62.874 million (utilized),
cash finance of Rs. 15.445 million {utifized), running finance of Rs. 5.000 million (utilized), and FAPC of Rs. 8.920 million
{utilized) to meet the working capital requirements of the company cbtained from the bank that carries mark up at 3
Months KIBOR plus 2% with floor of 12% per annumm (LIBOR plus 2.5% per annum with floor 5.5% per annum in case
of foreign finance). The loan is secured against ranking hypothecation and 1st pari passu/ranking charges on current
and fixed assets of the company. All the facilities were expired on 31-12-2009.

The Bank as per its confirmation letter No # MP/THS/86 confirmed limit of Rs. 204.235 million of short term loans while
balances extended to company are Rs. 223.48 million as on 30th June 2016 whereas the balances reflected in
company's books on the said date after payments of Rs. 85.50 million by June 30, 2016 are Rs. 53.01 million. The
foreign currency loans as at 30th June 2016 are converted by bank at exchange rates prevailing on balance sheet date
and exchange variation loss of Rs. 170.465 million is not incorporated in books.

Also refer to note 10.1.3,

Request to the bank for balance confirmation were not responded.

The Company as per Settlement agreement dated 22 November 2013 agreed to pay entire liability of Habib Bank Limited by a
total payment of Rs. 114.700 Million (Settlement Amount) through sale of assets/machinery. A sum of Rs. 40 million was paid
against a sum of 68.820 Million within eight months from the date of agreement and the balance payment of Rs. 45.880 Miflion
within twelve months from the date of the agreement. In case of delay/refusal from prospective buyer in making payment as
per schedule then the Company will pay the Settled Amount from their own pocket through sale of assets/ machinery. Any
waiver of the amounts mentioned In the suit i.e. Rs. 210.650 Million shalf only be granted once the Company pay the entire
Settlement Amount as mentioned above,

(a) The Company could not make payment of Rs. 68.820 million by due date 22-07-2014 and accordingly vide a
Supplement agreement dated 10 September 2014 agreed that batance amount of first settfement of Rs. 68.820 million
would be paid in the manner of an amount of Rs. 8.820 Million by 22-10-2014 and balance amount of first instaliment of
Rs, 20.0 Million by 22-11-2014.

The second installment of Rs. 45.880 Million shall be paid as per terms of the compromise agreement by or before 22-
11-2014 i.e, 12 months from the date of main compromise agreement dated 23-11-2013 and decree dated 2-12-2013.
That subject to this agreement all the tarms and conditions of the Settlement agreement dated 23-11-2013 as well as
decree dated 02-12-2013 shall be valid and are in field and shall be enforceable at the option of Bank in accordance
with Law.

(b)  The Company and the bank have filed compromise agreement and cases against each other are to be withdrawn,
Refer to note. 17.13.

()  However the company has paid Rs. 21.5 million in 2016 towards the outstanding balance agreed with HBL as per
settlement. The company is of the view, upon availability of funds the full and final amount of the entire liablity will be
paid off.

See aiso note no. 46.
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NIB Bank Limited:

The company as per settlement agreement with NIB Bank Limited has paid the agreed amount of Rs. 107.204 mitlion
against outstanding principal of Rs. 190.889 million during the year. The bank has waived off the remaining outstanding
principal amount of Rs. 83.684 million and all out standing mark-up of Rs. 24.926 million. The bank has Issued a
certificate regarding Full and Final Settlement dated June 30, 2016.

However the bank has not responded to our confirmation request. See note 36.

Followings are over dues loans, overdues mark-up, markup accrued & unprovided markup for which approval was not
received yet from banks.
Note Overdies loans Ur::;:":ld:d On\:i;?(ﬂgs
no. 2016
8.8.1 Financing from banking companies: | | = s=eseseeee- Rupees in millign--r-n=»m-nn-
The Bank of Punjab 8.1 38.827 20.039 42.036
National Bank of Pakistan 8.2&83 £4.545 6.684 32.260
Habib Bank Limited 8.410 8.6 53.013 64.700 44,245
NIB Bank Limited 8.7 - - -
Industrial Developrment Bank Limited - - -
146.385 91,423 118.542
Leasing: First National Bank Modaraba 9.2 20.950 3.728 15.401
167.335 95.151 133.943
Note Overdues loans | Unprovided markup OmV:Z_iE:S
ne. 2015
8.8.2 {Financing from banking companies: | |  =mewememeee Rupees in million===-====-=--
The Bank of Punjab 38.827 19.894 38.930
National Bank of Pakistan 54.545 4.905 29.002
Habib Bank Limited 38.013 59.063 44,245
NIB Bank Limited 90.725 114,591 24.926
Industrial Development Bank Limited - 16.521 15.631
222,110 214,974 152.734
Leasing: First National Bank Modaraba 20.950 4,538 13.954
243.060 219.512 166.688

However the company has transferred an amount of Rs. 91,840 millions of the long term liabllities without any

hedule to ent liabilities. :
repayement schedu curr iabiliti 2016 2015

Note Rupees Rupees

9 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

9.1

Movement in finance lease liability is as follows:

Opening balanca 20,949,639 20,849,639

Payments made during the year - -
20,949,639 20,949,639

Current portion shown under current liabilities 15 - -
20,949,639 20,949,639
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9.2

Minimum lease payments

The future minimum lease payments and their present value, to which the company is committed under lease
agreements are as fallows:

Security deposits adjustable on

Gross minimum lease payments

Financial charges allocated to future pericds
Present value of minimum lease payments
Current portion shown under current liabilities

Due not later] Due over one Due over
than year and up to five years
one year five years 2016 2015
- ----Rupees
26,287,781 2,600,496 - 28,888,277 28,888,277
expiry of lease term - 2,866,667 - 2,866,667 2,866,667
26,287,781 5,467,163 - 31,754,944 31,754,944
(8,204,835) (2,600,470} - (10,805,305) (10,805,305)
18,082,946 2,866,693 - 20,949,639 20,949,639
18,082,946 2,866,653 - 20,949,639 20,949,639

9.2.1

9.2.2

9.2.3

The company has executed finance lease agreements with financial institution (leasing company) to acquire plant
and machinery. The liabilities under these lease agreements are payable in monthly instalments by February 2017
and were originally subject to finance cost at the rate 14.75% (2015: 14.75%) (approximately) per annum which
are used as discounting factors. Taxes, repairs, replfacements and insurance costs are borne by the Company. The
security deposits shall be adjusted against the residual value along with the last instalment as the management of
the Company intends to exercise its option to purchase the assets upon completion of their respective lease
terms.

These are secured against security deposits, titles of ownership of leased assets and personal guarantees of
directors of the Company.

First Nationaf Bank Modaraba has filed a suit against the company for recovery of Rs, 29,994 million. This suit was
presently pending adjudication before the Banking Court Ne.II Lahore, wherefrom it has been decreed on 29-01-
2015 and presently as appeal of the same is pending adjudication before Honorable Lahore High Court Lahore,
whereas exacution proceedings before the Banking Court No. II are pending. The legat advisors vide letter dated
August 08, 2016 have stated that this case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company. First
National Bank Modarabah has also filed an appeal before the division bench of Lahore High court, Lahore, which
Is also pending. In execution proceedings against dismissal of an Objection Petition. the company has also filed an
appeal before the Division Bench of Lahore High Court, Lahore, The amount in this case is the same as above
referred. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the company.

The Company has also filed a suit against the First National Bank Modaraba for recovery of Rs. 47.550 million.
This suit was presently pending adjudication before the Banking Court No.II Lahore, which was dismissed on 29~
01-2015 and presently as appeat of the same is pending adjudication before Honorable Lahare High Court Lahore.
The legat advisors vide letter dated August 08, 2016 have stated that there is no scope of any loss to the
Company.

Refer to note. 17.7.

9.2.4 In relation to Note 9.2.1 to 9.2.3 no adjustments are made in books for claims and counter claims. Letters
dropped to First National Bank Modaraba for confirmation of balances were not responded.
2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
10 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred mark-up 10.1 133,042,713 166,688,432
Staff retirement benefits - unfunded gratuity scheme 10.2 3,507,770 3,065,586
137,450,483 169,754,018
10.1 Deferred mark up:
Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan 10.1.3 - 15,631,000
(Frozen)-Secured
The Bank of Punjab 10.1.2 42,036,355 38,930,177
Habib Bank Limited 10.1.3 44,245,366 44,245,366
National Bank of Pakistan 10.1.4 32,260,475 26,002,301
First National Bank Modaraba 10.1.5 15,400,515 13,953,877
NIB Bank Limited (PICIC) 10.1.6 - 24,925,710

133,942,711 166,688,431
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10.2

10.1.1 As per the bank confirmation dated September 07, 2016 the bank has confirmed that the company has settled their
foan account with the Bank as per arrangement. The company as per settlement agreement has paid the entire
fiabitty of Rs. 12.807 milfion against the cutstanding balance of 23.458 million as at agreement date. The remaining
balance of Rs. 10.651 has been waived off. See note no. 36

10.1.2 This represents overdue mark up aggregating Rs 14.196 million relating to the period from October 2006 to June
2009 as a result of rescheduling vide letter dated 04-07-2009 from the Bank of Punjab, The overdue deferred mark
up shall be pald after the last instaiment of Pemand Finance liability as on 01-07-2014. The unprovided mark up
amount Rs 20.039 million (2015: Rs. 19.894 million) refer to note 8.1 and 46.

10.1.3 This year the Company has deferred the markup of Rs nil (2015:Rs. nil). The unprovided mark up amount Rs,
64.700 million (2015:Rs. 59.063 million). Refer to Note 8.5.

10.1.4 The company has requested the bank for rescheduling of loan liability, however, this proposal is under process by
the bank as at the balance sheet date therefore this year the Company has aiso deferred the mark up of Rs nil
(2015:Rs. nil). The unpravided mark up amount Rs 6.684 million (2015: Rs, 4.905 million), Refer to note 8.2 & 8.3.

10.1.5 This include Rs 3.900 million unpaid mark up for the period from September 2006 till March 2009 kept frozen by the
hank and shall be paid in 12 equal monthly instaiment of 0.325 million from March 2016 to February 2017,

The management is of the view that this loan will be restructured. The unprovided mark up amount
Rs 3.728 million (2015: Rs. 4.538 million). Refer to note 9.2.4.

10.1.5 The company has settled with NIB Bank Limited the out standing principal amount of loan as per arrangement and
the Bank has waived off the entire mark up amount of Rs, 24.925 million as per books. See note 36.

2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
Staff retirement benefits - unfunded gratuity scheme

Reconciliation of payable to defined benefit plan:

The amounts recognized in balance sheet are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 3,507,770 3,065,586
Unrecognized net actuarial gains/(losses) - -

3,507,770 3,065,586
Movement in net liability recognized is as follows:
Opening balance at July 01, 3,065,586 2,612,133
Service cost recognized during the year 569,227 581,061
Benefits paid during the year {127,043) (127,608)
Closing balance as at June 30, 3,507,770 3,065,586

Last actuariai vaiuation was carried out as at June 30, 2009 under the ' Projected Unit Credit Method'. The significant
assumptions used for actuarial valuation were as follows:

In current year provision is based on estimate basis.

Discount rate 13% 13%
Expected rate of salary increase 11% 11%
Expense recognized in the income statement

Current service cost 1¢.2.1 569,227 581,061

Interest cost - -

569,227 581,061

10.2.1 These include Rupees Nil (2015: Rs. 0.172 million) were recovered from lessee.

10.2.2 No acturial valuation has been carried out. The management is of the view that the laibility declared need no
acturial valuation.

i MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LTD. B ___Anmml Repor? 2016

i




11

12

13

14

15

16

- MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LTD.

Annual Report 2016

Note
LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits of lease:
Style Textile {Pvt) Limited
Less; current portion shown under current liabilities

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors for:
Goods
Expenses
Accrued expenses
Advances from customers
Income tax deducted at source
Unclaimed dividend
Others

ACCRUED MARK UP

Mark up accrued on:
Long term financing 131
Lizbilities against assets subject to finance lease 13.2

13.1  Un provided mark-up for the year is Rs. 91.423 million (2015: Rs. 214.974 million). Refer to note 8.8.1 and 8.

13.2  Un provided mark-up for the year is Rs. 3.728 million {2015: Rs. 4.538 milion). Refer to note 8.8.1 and 9.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
From related parties - unsecured

Loan from related parties and others 14.3

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
10,000,000 10,000,000
{8,888,889) (5,555,556)

1,111,111 4,444,444

5,816,646 6,613,814

2,659,792 3,390,842
14,635,366 20,754,868

6,218,607 11,302,232

105,667 87,445
415,333 415,333

7,156,170 5,884,064

37,007,580 48,448,598
124,544,465 103,551,276
124,544,465 103,551,276

14,1 This includes Rs. 104.544 millions interest-free and unsecured loan obtained from family and friends of the management.

The repayment terms of the loan have yet not been finalized.

14.2 loan amounting Rs. 20 millions obtained from third party carrying no markup. It is freated as short term with mutual

consent. No terms and conditions / repayment period are settled yet.

CURRENT AND OVERDUE PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of Long term financing 8
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease S
Security deposits of lease 11

PROVISICON FOR TAXATION
Provision made for the current year 38
Provision adjusted during the year

91,839,862 69,000,000
8,888,889 5,555,556
100,728,751 74,555,556

1
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17 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
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17.2

17.3

17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

17..9

Cotton claims of Rs, 29.851 million (US $ 500,186} are lodged against foreign cotton suppliers and their agents in the
Pakistan (Ralli Brothers} for weight shortage, bad quality supplied and late shipments. As per legal advisor
confirmation, The suit is filed in the court of Civil Judge, Lahore and is presently at the stage of arguments and is still
subjudice. However, this was considered bad of recovery and amount was written off.

Claims filed by M/s Cargill and others for Rs. 7.873 million have been awarded in exparte arbitration proceedings.
These claims have not been admitted by the Company. The management is hopeful that no loss is expectad to arise. The
application filed in the court of Civil Judge, Lahore is stifl pending adjudication. The legal advisor has confirmed that the
case is presently at the stage of arguments.

Writ petition fited against WAPDA on refusal of request for reduction of load was disposed off by the court with the
direction to approach WAPDA authorigias. The matter is still pending with the said authority.

Electricity duty case is pending with Honourable High Court. No confirmation from lega! advisor of the company is
available.

A suit fited by the PICIC now (NIB Bank Limited) against the company and others before the Lahore High Court, Lahore,
wherein the bank has daimed recovery of Rs. 263.768 million. A settlfement has been affected amangst the parties, in
terms whereof, this suit has been adjourned Sine Die. NOC has been issued by the bank and the case will be withdrawn
by the bank.

The Company has also filed a Writ Petition against Federation and NIB Bank Limited, thereby seeking protection under
Article 10-A of the Constitution. This Writ Petition is pending adjudication before the Honorable Lahore High Court Lahore.
The legal advisor vide its letter dated July 13, 2015 has stated that there is no scope of any loss to the company in the
instant matter.

The Company has filed a suit for damages against Bank of Punjab for recovery of claims and damages of Rs. 140.253
million. The legal advisors vide letter dated August 08, 2016 have stated that there is no scope of any foss to the company.
This suit is presently pending adjudication before Lahore High Court Lzhore. The legal advisor has confirmed that a
settlement has been affected amongst the parties.

The Bank of Punjab has also filed a suit against the company for recovery of Rs. 56.298 million as confirmed by the legal
advisor vide thelr letter dated August 08, 2016. This suit is also presently pending adjudication before Lahore High Court
Lahore, The legal advisor has also confirmed that a settlement has been affected amongst the parties, in terms whereof,
this suit will be withdrawn upon completion of settfement.

Refer to note 8.1 and 10.1.2.

First National Bank Modaraba has filed a suit against the company for recovery of Rs. 29.994 million. This suit was
presently pending adjudication before the Banking Court No.XI Lahore, wherefrom it has been decreed on 28-01-2015 and
presently as appeal of the same is panding adjudication before Honcrable Lahore High Court Lahore, whereas execution
praceedings before the Banking Court No. II are pending. The legal advisors vide letter dated August 08, 2016 have stated
that this case is being vigorously and diligently contested by the Company. First National Bank Modarabah has also filed an
appeal befora the division bench of Lahore High court, Lahore, which is also pending. In execution proceedings against
dismissat of an Objection Petition. the company has also filed an appeat before the Division Bench of Lahere High Court,
Lahore. The amount in this case is the same as above referred. This case is being vigorously and diligently contested by
the company.

The Company has aiso filed a suit against the First National Bank Modaraba for recovery of Rs. 47.550 million. This suit
was presently pending adjudication before the Banking Court No.II Lahore, which was dismissed on 29-01-2015 and
presently as appeal of the same is pending adjudication before Honorable Lahore High Court Lahore. The legal advisors
vide letter dated August 08, 2016 have stated that there is no scope of any loss to the Company.

Refer to note. 9.2.3 and 190.1.5.

Appeals of Company relating to years 2005 & 2007 on the issue of minimum tax levied u/s 113 of Income Tax Act 2001
involving tax liability aggregating to Rs. 4.507 million are decided by the Income Tax Appellate in favour of Company vide
Appellate Order dated April 13, 2015.

Appeal filed by Company to ATIR for tax year 2010 against various curtailment & add backs confirmed by CIR(A} made by
DCIR vide Order ufs 122(5A) is pending. Demand of Rs. 0.173 million is illegal and not provided,

Annual Report 2016
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17.10 DCIR while making revised assessment vide Order ufs 124/161/205(3) dated 23-06-2014 levied tax of Rs. 1.857 miillion for
tax year 2006 u/s 161 and Rs. 4.533 million for additional tax ufs 205(3} on said disputed demand Appeal before CIR(A) is
yet not decided. However rectification was carried out by the taxation officer ufs 221 vide Order dated 17-09-2015 and all
demand was reduced to Rs. 36.95 miilion.

17.11 The National Bank of Pakistan has filed & suit against the company and others for recovery of Rs. 77.252 million as
confirmed by the legal advisor vide their letter dated August 08, 2016. This suit is also presently pending adjudication
before Lahore High Court Lahore and is being vigorously contested by the Company.

Refer to note 8.2, 8.3 and 10.1.4.

17,12 The company has filed a suit against National Bank of Pakistan . As per legal advisor confirmation, this suit is presently
pending adjudication before the Lahore High Court Lahore. The company is vigifantly pursuining this case. There is no
scope of any loss to the company in the instant matter.

17.13 Legal advisor vide their letter dated August 08, 2016 has confirmed that a Pefition under section 284 & 285 of the
Companies Ordinance 1984 for enforcing compromise amengst the Company and alf of its creditor Banks has been filed by
the Company before the Lahore High Court Lahore vide CO Ne.24/2013, The Company is vigilantly pursuing this case.
There is no scope of any loss to the Company.

17.14 Ameunt due from 1.5 Textile as at June 30, 2016 is Rs. 8.287 million against which the debtor issued cheques of
Rs. 7.400 million out of which cheques of Rs. 3.900 million were dishonoured. As per legal advisar named "Lawyers &
Lawyers" vide their letter dated August 08, 2016 suit for recovery of Rs. 3.500 million was filed. The Company is vigilantly
pursuing this case. There is no scope of any loss to the Company. The legal advisor also stated that nothing can bhe
anticipated for future.

17.15 FIR fodged against Green Corporation for damages claims of Rs. 26.827 million because of termination of lease agreement
before the expiry date without giving prier notice. The matter is under negotiation for reconciliation of claims of contingent

nature.
2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
18 LIABILIIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH NON-
CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Advances against machinery held for sale 18.1 - 5,000,000

18.1 Sale agreements with these contractors could not be concluded and advances received from them were returned back to
them in year 2016.

19 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT-note annexed 19.1 293,509,327 316,061,880
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¥
19.2 Property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year 19.2.1

N\

19.2.1 Detall of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year:
Non current asset held for sale

Cost/Revalued | Accumulated fBook Sale Gain / (loss)
Particulars Amount Depreciation Yalue Proceeds Sold to Mode of
Disposal
Electric Crain ong Ton 44,000 - 44,000 5,042 (38,958) Abdu! Majeed {Kasur) Negotiation
Drawling/Reeds Frame 130,000 - 120,000 25,210 (164,750) Abdul Ghafar (Faisalabad) Negotiation
Vaccum cleaner plant 800,000 - 800,000 168,067 {631,933) Mujanid-u--Rehman (Haripur) Negotiation
Bofler 6,123,181 (3,315,198) 2,807,983 2,500,000 1307,583) M/s Dynamic Sportswear pvt. Ltd. {Lahore} Negotiation
7,007,181 (3,315,298) 3,781,983 2,608,319 (1,083,664)
Consumable Stores 48,808 - 48,808 48,808 - Abdu? Rasheed Lahore) Negotiation
Plant & Machinery
Drawing Frame 1,250,000 (115,430) 1,134,570 1,100,000 (34,570) Fanz Spinning Mills {Kasur) Negotiation
Bale Pluckers 300,000 (29,438) 270,563 300,000 29,438 Hashim Text. & Knitwears Pvi. Ltd. (Lahore} Negotiation
Blow Room 5,200,000 (600,438) 4,599,563 4,300,000 {299,562) Hassan and Co. (Karachi) Negotiation
Card Filter 800,000 (35,000) 765,000 700,000 (65,000) A-Zamin Textile Mills Ltd. {Faisaiabad) Negotiation
Drawing Frame 1,250,000 (144336) 1,105,664 1,125,000 19,336 Fanz Spinning Mills {Kasur) Negotiation
Alr & Humidification plant 800,000 (101,625) 698,375 675,008 (23,375) Abdw? Rasheed Lahore Negotiation
Laboratory Equipment 1,200,000 (166,313) 1,033,688 1,360,800 326,313 Hassan and Co. (Karachi) Negotiation
Vehicles 10,800,000 (1,192,578) 9,607,422 9,560,000 (47,422)
Suzuki Mehran LX2-2514 326,384 {315,809} 10,575 215,000 204,425 Arif Ali (Kasur) Negotiation
2016 18,272,373 (4,823,586) 13,948,787 12,522,127 (926,560)
2016 2015
Note Rupees Rupees
19.3 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under:-
Cost of goeds sold - Continuing operations 30.0 - -
Administrative expenses 34.0 985,812 1,069,651
Administrative expenses - Non operational 34.3 13,132,627 14,541,570
14,118,439 15,611,221

19.4 Revaluations of land, buildings, plant and machinery was carried out in May 2008, April 2004 and Septembear 1995 by an
independent valuers. In 2014 the Land, Building and Plant & Machinery are revalued by approved
Independent Valuer- Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt) Lid., Lahore.

20 TNVESTMENT PROPERTY

Opening balance 99,021,428 -
Freehold land transfer during the year - 20,000,000
Factory building on freehold tand transfer during the year - 75,728,000
Acquisition during the year - 3,293,428
Carrying value - 99,021,428
Increase in fair value - -
Fair value - Closing balance 99,021,428 99,021,428

As of reporting date, investment properties comprise of land and building. Fair value of investment properties is
determined by an independent professional valuer Latest wvaluation of these properties was carried out
on June 30, 2014 by an approved Independent Valuer- Hamid Mukhtar & Co. (Pvt) Ltd., Lahore. The table below analyses
the non-financial assets carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have heen defined as fotlows:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
{that is, as prices} or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) {level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liabitity that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
The following table presents the investment properties that are measured at fair value at June 30, 2016.
Recurring fair value measurements
Investment properties 99,021,428 99,021,428
There are no level 1 and level 3 assets during 2016.
Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values

Level 2 fair values of investment property have been derived using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable
Jand and buildings in ciose proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as [ocation, size, nature and condition of
the property . The most significant input into this valuation appreach is price per square foot.
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20.1 Latest fair market valuation was carried out by the independent valuer on June 30, 2014 and there is no material change
in the recorded valuation as at June 30, 2016 as compared to that shown by balance sheet as at June 30, 2015.

20.2 The Company has adopted first time IAS 40 ‘investment property’ In the year 2015 and applied fair value model of
accounting as basis for measurement of investment property. Previously these assets were held in 'Property, plant and
equipment' IAS 16 measured under revaluation model. All investment properties are meastred under IFRS 13 ' fair value
measurement’ and there Is no change in fair value as the assets were recently revalued as at June 30, 2014. The change in
accounting estimate has been effected to comply with the requirements of revised IAS 40 and IFRS 13 and accourted for
prospectively by including the effect in profit and loss in period of change in accordance with the recommended treatment
specified in the revised IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.

Refer to note. 4.2, 4.9, 4.21 & 6. 2016 2015
LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note Rupees Rupees
Deposits against leased assets 2,866,667 2,866,667
Deposits with Utility Companies 658,317 658,317
Others 123,260 123,260
3,648,244 3,648,244
STORES AND SPARES
Stores 1,022,015 681,917
Disposed during the year (48,808) -
Less: Provision for obsolete stores {921,008) (370,238)
52,109 311,679
Spares 914,037 443,986
Less: Provision for obsolete spares (311,590) (118,340)
602,447 325,646
Less: Transferred to held for sale (149,678)
504,878 637,325
23 TRADE DEBTS
Local
Censidered good - unsecuraed 231 2,134,687 9,958,705
Considered doubtful 995,475 4,277,301
3,130,162 14,236,006
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (995,475) {4,277,301)
2,134,687 9,958,705
Rent recoverable
Considered good - unsecured 1,512,107 3,224,013
Considered doubtful 23.1 14,519,196 5,855,422
16,031,303 9,079,435
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (14,519,196) -
1,512,107 9,079,435

24

3,646,794 15,038,140

23.1  Also refer to Note, 17.14 & 1715,

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances to suppliers and contractors:
- Considerad good 61,460 112,501
- Considered doubtful 189,761 255,797
251,221 372,698
Less: Provision for doubtful advances {189,761) (259,797}
61,460 112,901
Advances to emplovees 535,660 475,805
597,120 592,706

241 Amount due from chief executive officer, directors, executives of the Company and other related parties is
Rs. nil {(2015:Rs. nil). Maximum aggregate balance due from Directors of the Company at the end of any month during the
year was Rs, nil (2015; Rs. nil}.
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25 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit (SNGPL)
Guarantee margin
Prepayments
Claims receivables

25.1

25.2

25.1 These accounts are subject to return @ 5.0% (2015: 4.19%) per annum.

25.2  Claims receivables

Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: provision for deubtful claims

26 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Income tax refundable

Sales tax refundable
Less: Provision for doubtful of recovery

26.1 INCOME TAX REFUNDABLE comprises of!
Balance as at Ist July,
Add/(Less} : (Deducted)/Collected during the Year

Less : Adjusted against Provision for Taxation

27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash with banks:
In current accounts
In saving accounts

28 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Non currant asset held for sale
Opening balance

Transfer during the year - Plant and Machinery

Disposed off during the year

Weaving store & spares held for sale
Opening balance
Transfer during the year

Disposed off during the year

26.1

16

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
6,053,697 6,179,407

48,756 48,756
65,527 53,250
6,167,980 6,281,413
- 33,976,306
- 33,976,306

- (33,876,306)
6,128,177 1,966,050
577,180 963,279

(487,762) (487,762)
89,418 505,517
6,217,595 2,471,567
1,966,050 336,540
4,162,127 1,629,510
6,128,177 1,566,050
6,128,177 1,966,050
144,021 22,037
4,185,614 142,872
2,711,651 1,726,785
6,897,265 1,869,657
7,041,286 1,891,654
4,142,983 29,640,000
- 2,807,983
4,142,983 32,447,983

(3,781,983) {28,305,000)
361,000 4,142,983
557,734 2,106,282
149,678 557,734
707,412 2,664,016

- (2,106,282}
707,412 557,734
1,068,412 4,700,717

The Cempany has closed down its Weaving unit and most of machinery has been sold last year. Machinery held for sale is

expected to be soid entirely with in next 12 months, Also refer to Note. 1 & 19.1.

In view of the un-heaithy and un-economical eonditions of the country the management anticipate that they will be hardly
able to realize the fair market value of Rs. 0.361 millicn disclosed by financial statement resulting in no profit or loss.
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2016 2015
SALES Rupees Rupees
Conversion Charges from third parties - -
COSY OF SALES
Salaries, wages and benefits - -
Stores and spares consumed - -
Fuel and power - -
Packing materials - -
Other manufacturing expenses - -
Depreciation 19.3 - -
Cost of goods manufactured - -
Finished goods:
Opening - Spinning - -
RENTAL INCOME FROM INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Green Corporation - 17,660,000
Style Textile (Pvt) Limited 24,736,839 12,518,989
Miscellaneous Colony rent 2,662,348 634,034
27,399,187 30,753,023
RENTAL EXPENSES OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Salarles, wages and benefits 32.1 3,702,682 762,399
Rent, rate and taxes 123,750 83,600
Repair and maintenance 169,451 194,996
Insurance 79,761 113,420
Vehicles expenses - 30,300
Telecommunication 43,339 34,086
Others expenses 388,476 30,949
4,507,459 1,249,750
32.1 These include Rupees 0.195 million (2015: Rupees 0.030} in respect of staff retirement benefits.
DISTRIBUTION COST
Staff salaries and benefits 331 1,020,467 960,000
Miscellaneous 24,075 32,292
1,044,542 992,292

33.1 These include Rupees Nil (2015: Rupees Nii ) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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20146 2015
) Rupees Rupees
34 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benefits 34,1 7,601,948 6,638,936
Travelling and conveyance 27,395 71,625
Rent, rate and taxes 1,053,160 987,615
Repair and maintenance 280,844 221,424
Insurance 218,504 159,293
Utilities 918,093 690,885
Printing and stationery 164,632 169,470
Fee and subscription 219,217 245,000
Vehicles running and maintenance 1,365,677 1,044,247
Entertainment 223,619 259,444
Newspapers and journals 18,005 21,125
Postage and telegram 28,693 40,703
Telecommunication 256,550 256,275
Press advertisements 26,180 95,340
Legal and professional charges 2,786,000 1,301,000
Auditor's remuneration 34.2 383,800 425,000
Depreciation 19.3 985,812 1,069,651
Miscellaneous - 16,383
Neon-operational expenses 34.3 17,508,490 19,569,785
34,006,709 33,327,201
34.1 These include Rupees 0,373 million (2015: Rupees 0.379 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits,
34.2  Auditors' remuneration:
- Statutory audit fee 175,000 150,000
- Review, corporate advisory and certification fee 55,800 50,000
- Tax consultancy fee 143,000 200,000
- Qut of pocket expenses 10,000 25,000
383,800 425 000
34.3 Non-operational expenses
Rent, rate and taxes 23,000 62,500
Repair and maintenance 587,294 422,739
Stores and spares consumed 169,348 1,712,733
Fuel and power 2,837,837 2,666,156
Insurance 315,157 101,057
Fee and subscription 55,368 55,368
Telecommunication 5,149 4,855
Other expenses 382,710 2,807
Depreciation 13,132,627 14,541,570
17,508,490 19,568,785
35 OTHER OPERATING CHARGES
Provision raised for Claims receivable being bad of recovery - 28,757
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 926,660 -
Provision raised for Doubtful debts 15,046,109 1,836,994
Loss on disposal of non-current asset held for sale {stores) - 1,548,548
Loss on disposal of nen-current asset held for sale (machinery) - 15,522,967
15,972,769 18,937,266
36 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Profit on security deposit (SNGPL) 384,250 448,505
Excess provision written off 22,606 -
Deferred markup written off 35,576,710 -
Un-claimed balances written back 752,686 2,290,640
Profit on disposal of office equipments and vehicle - 277,370
36,736,252 3,016,515
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2016 2015

FINANCE COSY Rupees Rupees
Mark up on:
L.ong term financing 7,317,884 8,071,804
lL.ease 1,446,638 1,808,257
Bank charges 10,125 14,382

8,774,647 9,894,483
TAXATION

38.1 Current year - -

The Company in tax year 2016 has sustained loss of Rs. 0.171 million while it has brought forward assessed losses
amounting to Rs. 340.210 million. The Company during the year enjoyed income from lease/rental, from industrial building
and spinning machinery which in view of the specific provision in section 39 of the Tncome Tax Ordinance, 2001, falls
taxable as income from other sources,

In view of losses, no tax is payable by the Company on income basis while the income from other sources is not hit by the
mischief of provision of section 113. Accordingly, no provision is raised for taxation.

Income tax return for tax year 2015 was filed within prescribed time Jimit. Income tax assessments have been completed
up te income year ended June 30, 2015 (tax year 2015) as deemed assessment. Losses available for carry forward to tax
year 2016 are amounting to Rs. 245.773 million {2014: Rs. 368.306 million).

38.2 Deferred tax asset amounting Rs. 2.864 million {2014: Rs. 103.387 million} is not recognized in these financial statements
as the Company is sustaining heavy losses and is assessed under the deeming section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance.
Major timing differences are not expected to reverse for a foreseeable future and there is no assurance that future taxable
profits would be sufficient to reatize the benefit of brought forward losses.

EARNING /LOSS PER SHARE - basic & diluted

Loss) for the year Rupeas {170,687} (30,631,454)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 22,105,200 22,105,200
Loss per share Rupees {0.01) {1.39)

39.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as the Company has no such commitments that
would result in difution of earnings of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
20416 2015
Particulars
Chief Executive Executive Directors Chief Executive Executive Directors

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Manageriat remunaration 816,000 1,400,000 735,996 1,320,000
House rent allowance 326,400 560,000 294,396 528,000
Medical 31,600 140,000 73,608 132,000

1,224,000 2,100,000 1,104,000 1,980,000
MNumber of parsons 1 2 1 2

40,1 Inaddition to above, meeting fee of Rs. 10 thousand {2015:Rs. 8 thousand) was paid to one (2015: one) nominee director
during the year.

4.2 The Chief Executive Officer and directors are provided with free use of the Company maintained vehicles.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise of related group companies, associated companies, staff retirement
funds, directors and key management personniel. Transactions with related parties and associated undertakings, other than
remuneration and benefits to key management personnel under the terms of their employment are as follows:
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2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Transactions with refated parties undertaken during the year are as follows:
- Lease rent (835,450} {646,800}
- Loan from family associates 78,993,189 58,619,440

42 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

42.1

()

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The Company has devised policies for risk areas where it could be subjected to a financial loss or where it expects to make
market gains. The Company takes exposure to expand #ts business, obtain sufficient funds to fulfill the demands, meet
working capital requirements and to gain benefit of mark-up rate spread available in the money market. Due to the nature
of business of the Comnpany, it is inherent that the Company liabilities will remain sensitive to external factors beyend the
control of management. Therefore, the management secures the financial liabifities of the Company through
collateralization of its property, plant and equipment, stores and stock-in-trade. Such collateralization are disclosed in
relevant notes to these financial statements.

The management provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as
currency risk, other price risk interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk where parties to the financial instruments are subjected to risk of changes in fair values of their
financial assets and liahilities due to circumstances reasonably beyond their control. The carrying value of all the financial
instruments reflected in these financial statements approximates to their fair vaiues.

(i} Currency Risk:

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company is subjected to currency risk on export sales and purchases that are entered in a currency other
than Pak Rupees that is a functional and presentation currency. The Company is exposed to currency risk arising
from United States Dollars- USD only. Currently the Company's foreign exchange exposure is restricted to long term
and short term borrowings. The Company's exposure to currency risk is as follows:

2016 2015
uspD usb
Long term financing 1,948,604.88 1,948,604.88
The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
Rupee per US Dollar _
Average rate 103.10 100.23
Reporting date rate 104.50 101.70

Sensitivity Analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, has weakened/ strengthened by 5% against the USD with all other
variables held constant, the impact on loss after taxation for the year would have been Rs. 10.045 million
(2015: 9.765 million) higher/lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains/ losses on transiation of foreign exchange
denominated financial instruments.

(i Other Price Risk

Other price risk represants the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affaecting alt
similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company Is not exposed to commodity price risk since it has
no portfolic of commadity suppliers. No equity instrument held by the Company which are traded on a regular basis
en the stock exchange and historically, it does not have a direct correlation with the equity index of the Karachi
Stock Exchange (KSE). Therefore, it has not any possible impact of increase / decrease in the KSE Index on the
Company's profit after taxation for the year and on equity {fair vaiue reserve).
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(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has no significant Long Term interest bearing assets except for Saving and Deposit accounts, on
which rate of return is minimal. The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term financing and short term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings
obtained at fixed rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as

follows:

2016 2015
Fixed Rate Instruments Rupees Rupees
Financial Liabilities - -
Floating Rate Instruments
Financial Liabilities
Long term financing 54,545,342 222,110,611
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 20,949,639 20,949,639
Financial Assets 2,711,651 1,726,785

Fair value sensttivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect the profit and loss of the Company.

Cradit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date. The carrying amount of financial assets represents
the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date Is as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 3,648,244 3,648,244
Trade debts 3,646,794 19,038,140
Loans and advances 535,660 479,805
Trade deposits 6,102,453 6,228,163
Bank Baiances 6,897,265 1,869,657

20,830,416 31,264,005

The Company's exposure to credit risk and impairment tosses refated to trade debts is disclosed in Note 23.

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to
their strong financial standing, management dees not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations
to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is a risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

Since many years, The Company is facing liquidity problems. For this, purpose, the Company is continuously negetiating
with its financial institutions in order £o re-schedule its locans and also to defer payment of its outstanding loans and mark-
up accrued thereon. Currently, the Company manages its liquidity risk by maintaining cash and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. At 30th June, 2016, the Company
had Rs. nil million (2015: Rs. nil) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rs. 1.870 million
(2015: 6.897 million) cash and bank balances. In spite the fact that the Company is in & negative working capital position
at the year end, management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial

“n
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ilabilities, including interest payments. The amounts disclosed in the table are undisclosed cash flows:

Current maturities of financial liabilities as at 30th June, 2016

Carrying Contractual Values Less than One to More than
Amount One Year Five Years Five Years
Rupees
Trade and other payables 37,007,580 37,007,580 37,007,580 - -
Short term borrowings 124,544,465 124,544,465 124,544,465 - -
Directors’ bridge finance & loan 96,563,713 96,563,713 - 96,563,713 96,563,713
Long term financing 54,545,342 54,545,342 54,545,342 - -
Assets subject fo finance lease 20,949,639 20,949,639 18,082,946 18,082,946 2,866,693
Deferred Liabilities 137,450,483 137,450,483 119,354,114 18,096,369 18,096,369
471,061,223 471,061,223 353,534,448 132,743,028 117,526,775

Current maturities of financial iabilities as at 30th June, 2015

Carrying Contractual Less than One to

Amount Values One Year Flive Years

Rupees

Trade and other payables 47,877,112 47,877,112 47,877,112 - -
Short term berrowings 64,931,836 64,931,836 64,931,835 - -
Directors' bridge finance & loan 38,563,713 38,563,713 - 38,563,713 38,563,713
Long term financing 345,110,611 345,110,611 340,310,611 4,800,000 4,800,000
Assets subject to finance lease 20,949,639 20,949,639 15,698,050 5,251,589 5,251,589
Deferred Liabilities 163,020,463 163,020,463 144,924,094 18,096,369 18,096,369

680,453,374 680,453,374 613,741,703 66,711,671 66,711,671

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest rates/
mark up rates effective as at 30th June. The rates of interest/ mark up have been disclosed in the relevant notes to the

financial statements.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIARILITIES

The carrying value of all the Financial Assets & Liabilities reported in Financial Statements approximate their Fair Value.
Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

Loans and Advances
Long term deposits
Trade debts

Leoans and advances
Trade deposits

Bank Balances

Financial Liabilities as at Amortized Cost
l.ong term financing

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred liabilities

Trade and other payables

Short term borrowings

2016 2015

Rupees Rupees
3,648,244 3,648,244
3,646,794 19,038,140
535,660 479,805
6,167,980 6,281,413
7,041,286 1,891,694
21,039,964 31,339,296
146,385,204 291,110,611
20,949,639 20,949,639
137,450,483 169,754,018
37,007,580 48,448,598
124,544,465 103,551,276
466,337,372 633,814,142

R
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42.4 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

While managing capital, the objectives of the Company are to ensure that it continues to meet the going concern
assumption, enhances shareholders’ wealth and meets sharsholders' expectations. The Company ensures its sustainable
growth viz. maintaining optimal capital structure, keeping its finance cost low, exercising the option of issuing right shares
or repurchase shares, if possible, selling surplus property, plant and equipment without affecting the optimal production
and operating level and regulating its dividend payout, thus maintaining smooth capital management.

In line with others in the textile industry, the Company monitors its capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings from the banks and financial
institutions { including current and non-current ) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital Is calculated as equity as
shown in the balance sheet plus net debt. As on the reporting date , the gearing ratio of the Company was as under:

2016 2015

Rupees Rupees
Total borrowings 270,929,669 394,661,887
Cash and bank bhalances (7,041,286) {1,891,694)
Net Debt 263,888,383 392,770,193
Equity (377,368,827) (463,818,520}
Total Capital {113,480,444)  (71,048,327)
Gearing Ratio +232.54% -552.82%

43 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The company earns cnly rental income from renting out land and building (investment property}. The company has no operation
segments, therefere no segmentation has been made.

44 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 2016 2015
Spinning
Number of spindles installed and worked 18,456 18,456
Rated capacity in thousands of kilograms converted into 20/1 count 5,845 5,845

Actual production in thousands of kilograms converted into 20/1 count:
- Own Conversion - -
- Conversion-third parties - -

Weaving
Number of looms installed and worked - -
Rated capacity in thousands of sq. meters converted into 50 picks - -
Actual production in thousands of sq. meters converted into 50 picks:

- Own Conversion - -

- Conversion-third parties - -

44,1 Non-utilization of rated capacity was due to lease agreement with third parties.

44,2 Weaving Unit has been closed with effect from November 2013 with ne intention of resuming Tt.

45 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2016 2015
Average No. of workers per month 35 46
As at 30th June 35 35

|
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Settlement Agreement with BOP:

The company has made a settlement agreement with The Bank of Punjab for settlement of overdue liabilities as on June 30,
2016. The bank of Punjab vide letter # SAMD/HO/NIL dated August 29, 2016 has informed the approval of proposal for
settlement of overdue liabilities in the subject account on the terms and conditions mentioned below;

Against the total liability of Rs. 70.785 million the company shall repay Rs. 38.827 million as fuli and final settlement in the
following manner.

a) Down Payment (50%) of Rs, 19.414 million within 15 days afer the date approval.
b) Balance Repayment:

i) Rs. 9.707 million i.e 25% shall be paid by 31.10.2016

i} Rs. 9.706 million i.e 25% shall be paid on or before 31.01.2017

Upon payment of settlement amount and withdrawl of suit against the Bank a sum of Rs. 31.957 million on account of legal
charges/ Markup/ cost of Fund will be waived. Noc will be issued and securities wifl be released. The bank will withdraw the
recovery suit against the company..

The company has paid Rs. 19.414 million on account of down payment as per the above settlement agreement.

Payments Towards HBL Loan:
The company has made a payment of Rs. 13.5 million towards the compromised settled liability of HBL loan after the balance
sheet date.

DATE OF AUTHCRIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the company in its meeting
held on October 05, 2016.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee,

- Corresponding figures have been re-arranged / reclassified, wherever necessary, to facilitate comparison.

- The company is of the view that as per circular no. 14 2016 dated April 21, 2016 issued by the Securities Commission of
Pakistan relating to "All Shares Islamic Index” needs not be separately disclosed, as there are no any component fail en All
shares Islamic Index as at the reporting date.

MIAN MUHAMMAD JEHANGIR MIAN WAHEED AHMED
Chief Executive Director
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PROXY FORM
(30" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING)

1fWe son/daughter/wife
of of being member (s) of
MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LTD, holder of ordinary shares of
the Company, under Folio No./Participant's ID/CDC sub account No. _ hereby appoint
of failing him/her of

who isfare member(s) of MIAN TEXTILE INDUSTRIES LTD. under

Folio No./Participant’s ID/CDC sub account No. ____ respectively, as my/our proxy in my/our absence

to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company to

be held on October 31, 20186 and/or any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of October, 2016.
Signed in the presence of;
Witness
Name Signature of
0 ti Shareholder (s) on
ceupation revenue stamp
Address worth Rupees 5/-
The signature should agree with the
specimen registered with the Company.
IMPORTANT:

1. This Proxy Form, duty completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the
Company, 29-B/7 Model Town, Lahore. Not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting.

2. No person shall act as Proxy unless he/she is a member of the Company, except that a
Corporation/Company may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one Proxy and more than one instruments of Proxy are deposited by
a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.

4. In case of Proxy for an individual beneficial Owner of CDC, attested copies of beneficial Owner's NIC
or passport, Account and Participant's |.D. Nos. must be deposited along with the Form of Proxy. In
case proxy for corporate member, he/she should bring the usual documents required of such
purpose.

5. Shareholders are requested to notify change in their address, if any.




